CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

held on Thursday, 16th January, 2020 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor L Wardlaw (Chairman) Councillor A Moran (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors S Brookfield, J Clowes, A Critchley, D Edwardes, S Gardiner, M Goldsmith, M Houston, D Murphy, P Redstone, R Vernon, J Weatherill and N Wylie

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillor J Rhodes, Portfolio Holder for Public Health and Corporate Services

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Jill Broomhall, Director of Adult Social Care Linda Couchman, Acting Strategic Director of Adult Social Care and Health Tom Knight, Head of Primary Care (NHS England and NHS Improvement North West)* Nichola Thompson, Director of Commissioning Matt Tyrer, Interim Director of Public Health

* Attended for Minute No. 66 only

61 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor J Parry.

62 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED –

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 5 December 2019 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

63 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

64 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of the existence of a party whip.

65 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

The Chairman invited members of the public present to speak to the committee.

Congleton resident, Mr. Richard Walton addressed the committee in respect of the Congleton War Memorial Hospital, and raised the following concerns;

- That since this committee last discussed the matter on 10 October 2019, service provision had worsened due to issues with the building's heating, the discovery of asbestos and other infrastructural difficulties;
- The X-ray machine was no longer in operation due to a drain on the electrical supply; and
- That the intermittency and unpredictability of the hours of operation at the Minor Injuries Unit was still a concern and issue for residents.

Mr. Walton noted that he had approached Fiona Bruce, the Member of Parliament for Congleton, to assist and support with this matter.

Congleton Town Councillor Suzi Firkin also addressed the committee in respect of the Congleton War Memorial Hospital. Town Councillor Firkin raised concerns that related to;

- The weekend closure of the Minor Injuries Unit (MIU) and the total closure of the X-ray department for the foreseeable future;
- Electrical failures that had been cited to residents of Congleton as the reason for service closure;
- The lack of formal updates on both the upgrade and repair of infrastructural work, and a date that services were expected to resume at the hospital.

RESOLVED -

The committee thanked Mr Richard Walton and Ms Suzi Firkin for taking the time to attend the meeting and address the committee.

66 PROVISION OF ORTHODONTIC AND ORAL SURGERY SERVICES IN CHESHIRE EAST (NHS ENGLAND)

Consideration was given to a report on the future provision of orthodontic and oral surgery services in Cheshire East.

Members were advised that two appropriately skilled interim clinicians had been procured who had worked with a cohort of patients who had been treated at Macclesfield District General Hospital prior to the cessation of services in 2019. Findings showed that less patients went into an acute setting and more patients were treated in the community. Members of the committee were advised that the next steps would finally evaluate the interim service in April with a view that this model should be rolled out more widely into the south of Cheshire to minimise patient journeys and also adhere to national guidance on treating more patients in a primary care setting.

The committee raised concerns about workforce recruitment and retention issues, and also discussed some of the potential ways of working that could be introduced such as within GP surgeries, in pharmacies or across borders as a travelling team.

RESOLVED -

- 1 That the updated be noted.
- 2 That a further update in relation to this be scheduled, either for April 2020 or another suitable date soon after

67 PERFORMANCE SCORECARD - QUARTER 2, 2019/20

Consideration was given to the key performance indicators relating to services within the committee's remit from the second quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.

Members were advised that the major fire incident at Beechmere Retirement Home, Crewe, had occurred during this period; council staff and resources had not operated as usual in the wake of this incident, which was reflected in the data.

Members raised questions and comments in relation to;

- Delayed transfers of care performance, and the overall spend by the NHS into adult social care;
- The National Health Check (NHC), specifically how different cohorts and groups of people of different ages, ethnic backgrounds and from areas of greater socioeconomic deprivation were engaged with, and encouraged to partake in the NHC.

The Acting Director of Public Health agreed to answers to the committee's questions relating to the NHC and that these would be circulated to the committee outside of the meeting once received.

RESOLVED -

- 1 That the performance for the second quarter of 2019/20 be noted.
- 2 That the Scrutiny Officer circulate the answers provided by the Acting Director of Public Health to committee members outside of the meeting.

68 FORWARD PLAN

The committee considered the items on the forward plan which fell within its remit.

RESOLVED -

That the forward plan be received.

69 WORK PROGRAMME

The committee reviewed its work programme and noted that there were more scheduled items for the meeting in February than March, and considered the possibility of rescheduling some items. The committee referred back to the points raised earlier in the meeting by members of the public in respect of the Congleton War Memorial Hospital.

RESOLVED -

- 1 That the work programme be noted.
- 2 That the Chairman discuss the work programme with officers and portfolio holders at the next liaison meeting.
- 3 That the senior officers responsible for the operation and financing of the Congleton War Memorial Hospital be contacted and asked to provide an interim report at the next meeting on 6 February 2020, ahead of the scheduled update due on 9 April 2020.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.20 am

Councillor L Wardlaw (Chairman)